
Healthier Together
13307 Miami Lane  Caldwell, ID 83607  (208) 455-5300  FAX (208) 454-7722 

Board of Health Meeting 
Tuesday, November 28, 2023, 9:00 a.m. 
13307 Miami Lane, Caldwell, ID 83607  

Public comments specific to an agenda item for the November 28, 2023, Board of Health meeting can be 
submitted here or by mail to: SWDH Board of Health, Attn: Administration Office, 13307 Miami Lane, Caldwell, 
ID, 83607.  The period to submit public comments will close at 9:00 a.m. on Monday, November 27, 2023. The 
meeting will be available through live streaming on the SWDH You Tube channel. 

Agenda 

A = Board Action Required G =Guidance I = Information item 

 9:00 A Call the Meeting to Order Chairman Kelly Aberasturi 
 9:02 Pledge of Allegiance  
 9:03 Roll Call Chairman Kelly Aberasturi 
 9:05 I  Request for Additional Agenda items Chairman Kelly Aberasturi 
 9:07 In-Person Public Comment 
 9:10 I  Open Discussion  SWDH Board Members 
 9:15 A Approval of Minutes – October 24, 2023 Chairman Kelly Aberasturi 

Approval of Minutes – November 17, 2023 Chairman Kelly Aberasturi 
 9:18 I  Introduction of New Employees Division Administrators 
 9:25 I  October 2023 Expenditure and Revenue Report  Doug Doney 
 9:35 I  Summary of Discussion with State Controller’s Office Nikki Zogg 
 9:45 G Southwest District Health Policy Position Statements Nikki Zogg 
 9:55 A Proposed 2024 Board of Health Meeting Calendar Nikki Zogg 
10:00 I  Tobacco and Vape Use Prevention  Hailee Tilton 
10:15    A      Community Health Needs Assessment Implementation Plan Discussion  Alexis Pickering 
10:35 A Western Idaho Community Crisis Center Lease Renewal Cas Adams 
10:45 I  Director’s Report Nikki Zogg 

- Board of Health Meeting Winter Hours (10am – 1pm beginning December 2023)
- Idaho Association of District Board of Health’s Annual Meeting Location and Timing

10:50  Executive Session Pursuant to Idaho Code 74-206 (a) Chairman Kelly Aberasturi  
11:25 A Action taken as a result of executive session Chairman Kelly Aberasturi 
11:30 Transition to Public Health Symposium 
  1:30 Adjourn 

NEXT MEETING: Tuesday, December 19, 2023, 10:00 a.m.  (Note change to winter hours)

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/BoH07252023
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCZn5O5zBiR6Hhjekl2JX_KQ


 

 

BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, October 24, 2023 

 
BOARD MEMBERS:  
Jennifer Riebe, Commissioner, Payette County – present via Zoom 
Lyndon Haines, Commissioner, Washington County – not present  
Zach Brooks, Commissioner, Canyon County – present  
Kelly Aberasturi, Commissioner, Owyhee County – present  
Viki Purdy, Commissioner, Adams County – present 
Sam Summers, MD, Physician Representative – present 
Bill Butticci, Commissioner, Gem County – not present 
     
STAFF MEMBERS:   
In person: Nikki Zogg, Katrina Williams, Colt Dickman, Troy Cunningham, Beth Kriete, Cas Adams, 
Charlene Cariou 
 
Via Zoom: Jeff Renn 
 
GUESTS:  No guests attended the meeting.  
 
CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
Chairman Kelly Aberasturi called the meeting to order at 9:08 a.m.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Meeting attendees participated in the pledge of allegiance.  
 
ROLL CALL 
Chairman Aberasturi – present; Dr. Summers – present; Commissioner Purdy – present; Vice Chairman 
Haines – not present; Commissioner Brooks – present; Commissioner Riebe – present via Zoom; 
Commissioner Butticci – not present. 
 
REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS; APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
Chairman Kelly Aberasturi asked for additional agenda items. Board members had no additional agenda 
items or changes to the agenda.  
 
IN-PERSON PUBLIC COMMENT 
No public comment given.  
 
OPEN DISCUSSION 
Board members had no topics for open discussion. 
 
APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 
Board members reviewed meeting minutes from the meeting held September 19, 2023.  
 
MOTION: Commissioner Brooks made a motion to approve the September 19, 2023, Board of Health 
meeting minutes as presented. Commissioner Purdy seconded the motion. All in favor; motion passes. 



Board of Health Meeting Minutes  
October 24, 2023  

 
2 
 

INTRODUCTION OF NEW EMPLOYEES 
Division administrators introduced new staff.  
 
SEPTEMBER 2023 EXPENDITURE AND REVENUE REPORT  
Troy Cunningham, SWDH Financial Manager, presented estimated expenditure and revenue report data 
for fiscal year 2024 July through September. Due to the unavailability of data in Luma, expenditures and 
revenue do not align. Troy explained that the target range for this time in the fiscal year is about 25%. 
The expenditures are the most on-target numbers available through Luma. The budget to actual for 
personnel is at 20% which is close to target.  
 
Troy has reached out to Luma staff to inquire about how to pull accurate data. Other agencies across the 
state are experiencing similar challenges.  
 
Troy explained the Western Idaho Community Crisis Center (WIDCCC) and Western Idaho Youth Support 
Center (WIYSC) are also showing out of balance as Health and Welfare has not yet been billed for this 
contract.  
 
Commissioner Aberasturi asked if we have had to dip into reserves at all yet. Troy explained that at this 
point he does not believe so. Based on conversations with the Luma team and with the Deputy 
Controller, Luma is expected to begin to resolve some of the issues with pulling data. Troy is working to 
create reports to minimize inaccurate data. Despite those efforts Troy acknowledges that throughout 
this fiscal year the numbers will be a challenge.  
 
Nikki added that the Board asked SWDH staff to review the pros and cons of changing fiscal year cycles 
to align with counties. One of the biggest cons to this is the need to switch enterprise resource planning 
(ERP) system. There are barriers to changing; however, we are pursuing this option and have an 
upcoming meeting scheduled with the State Controller regarding the concerns with Luma and the 
feasibility of moving to a new ERP. Following the upcoming meeting with the State Controller, Nikki will 
coordinate a meeting with both the State Controller and Treasurer to discuss the what challenges may 
exist at the Treasure’s office that will need to be overcome to allow SWDH to move to a different ERP.  
 
QUARTERLY CONTRACTS REPORT  
Troy shared out an updated quarterly contracts report. This report is up to date as of the latest grant we 
received. This report reflects the grants we have received broken out in state and federal categories. 
Board members appreciated the additional detail in the report.  
 
QUARTERLY WESTERN IDAHO COMMUNITY CRISIS CENTER (WIDCCC) REPORT 
Cas Adams, Southwest District Health Project Manager, provided the Fiscal Year 2024 Quarter 1 Report 
for WIDCCC. Cas reminded board members that the purpose of the adult crisis center is three-fold and 
includes diversion from unnecessary involvement in the justice system and unnecessary admissions in 
the emergency department, prevention of future crises, and promoting wellbeing. The majority of 
clients at WIDCCC have both mental health and substance use concerns.  
 
Cas also discussed outcomes for the first quarter and shared survey results from the clients. 100% of 
those surveyed would return, 95% were confident with their discharge plan and 95% feel their needs 
were addressed. In Pathways’ first quarter as the WIDCCC provider they are providing high quality 
services showing the client is valued and the client needs are being addressed.  



Board of Health Meeting Minutes  
October 24, 2023  

 
3 
 

 
Return on investment numbers show other areas for cost savings can be identified. One or two days not 
spent in an in-patient center is a significant cost savings. Cas will analyze these figures for quarter 2 and 
bring back an updated return on investment figure.  
 
Commissioner Purdy asked for clarification of the dollar amount Medicaid pays is $400 per day. She 
asked what is the cost per day to run WIDCCC.  
 
Commissioner Brooks asked if pre-prosecution diversion (PPD) grant funds are earmarked to help with 
WIDCCC. Nikki responded that the PPD grant award will specifically go toward the work as described in 
the grant proposal and will not go toward supporting the crisis center.  
 
Cas shared that one success from first quarter is receipt of the harm reduction vending machine. Staff at 
WIDCCC have completed their first round of training for these harm reduction resources. She also noted 
that donations from community resources are abundant. Deseret Industries provides clothing donations 
to the center. Chipotle and Starbucks and local food pantries also provide donations. The increase in 
admission numbers from last fiscal year to this fiscal year’s first quarter is another noteworthy success.  
 
Increasing community buy in, increasing utilization, and increasing telehealth capabilities are goals for 
this fiscal year.  
 
SCHOOL CLINICS AND MEDICAL CLINICS OVERVIEW 
Rick Stimpson, SWDH Clinics Manager, provided an overview of the medical clinic. He noted that in 
Caldwell a provider is available almost each day and at the satellite offices several times each month for 
immunizations, screenings, and medication distribution. Rick provided information on the clinic staff, 
shared goals of moving from services limited to birth control and immunizations to broader primary care 
services. To help share this information out, rack cards and social media campaigns will highlight clinic 
services. Also, starting in January, SWDH will do a digital marketing campaign with clinic services as part 
of that advertising.  
 
Board members asked Rick if the clinic's goal is to get people to use a taxpayer funded service as 
opposed to private health care providers? Rick responded that we hope to bring patients in to increase 
the volume and explained that private health care providers often refer patients to SWDH for some of 
the more cost-efficient services and, similarly, SWDH cross refers as needed.  
 
Commissioner Purdy asked if we are competing with private business for customers. Nikki explained that 
there is a shortage of providers across the state and across our region and SWDH fills a gap or need 
where access is hard or where clients may not have great access to care based on underinsured or 
uninsured status. The SWDH medical clinic fills that gap rather than competing with the private sector.  
 
Dr. Summers clarified that often appointments at private health care providers are not available in a 
timely manner. Rick added that the partnership with other primary care providers allows cross referrals 
to help meet client needs. He also pointed out that the Community Health and Needs Assessment 
(CHNA) identified the need for family practice medicine as one of the biggest needs.  
 



Board of Health Meeting Minutes  
October 24, 2023  

 
4 
 

Next, Rick provided an overview of the Marsing School Clinic Project. Southwest District Health and 
Boise State University jointly wrote the grant for a school nurse in a rural area. The grant aims to show 
that access to a school nurse in a rural area helps increase student health overall.  
The partnership began as a project to provide a SWDH nurse in the Marsing school district three days a 
week. Boise State University developed and initiated a survey to ask students about their physical and 
mental health and whether students are aware of the school nurse resource. The survey was completed 
at the beginning of the project, in the middle and will be conducted at the end.  
 
The project works to help fund the school nurse through reimbursable services from Medicaid or private 
insurance. Parents have appreciated the availability of the school nurse as it limits the time off from 
work to take a sick child to a provider and increases access to medical screenings and exams.  
 
Dr. Summers asked for information on the metrics being used to prove the school clinic in Marsing is 
reaching its goals. Rick clarified that BSU is managing the metrics reporting side through the surveys 
being completed at beginning, midpoint, and endpoint of the project.  
 
Commissioner Aberasturi asked if after the initial project concludes is there any sustainability? 
Currently, there is not but there may be a chance for Blue Cross of Idaho to provide reimbursement for 
services provided by a nurse practitioner.  
 
ORGANIZATIONAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Sam Kenney, SWDH Organizational Development Manager, presented performance indicators chosen to 
measure the agency’s performance. The indicators show room for improvement and were developed 
from an inventory showing topics SWDH values such as fiscal accountability, building trust with the 
public, and maintaining engaged staff. These topics align with our strategic goals and values and are 
meaningful to our vision, mission, and purpose.  
 
This is the first year SWDH has established baseline performance indicators to track and through this 
next fiscal year we will build out a visualization for these indicators in a dashboard that can be shared 
out on our website designed to help increase transparency.  
 
Sam proposes reporting out on these indicators twice a year. These indicators may change in the future 
as our goals change and as we change performance measurement indicators. Sam shared the indicators 
for feedback or input from Board members. There were no questions or feedback.  
 
OPIOID SETTLEMENT SPENDING PLAN  
Charlene Cariou, SWDH Program Manager 2, presented a proposed spending plan for opioid settlement 
funds received. Receipt of these funds began in Fiscal Year 2022 and are expected to continue to be 
received through Fiscal Year 2039. Charlene asked for input to ensure funds are spent wisely. She 
reminded board members of the environmental scan results that helped highlight needs. She also 
shared activities currently in progress.  
 
The contracted research agency that conducted the environmental scan provided some ideas for pre-
approved activities such as prevention, education, treatment, mental health services, community health 
services, and supporting basic needs. These specific recommendations were gathered from listening to 
community members, policy makers, and other decision makers. 
 



Board of Health Meeting Minutes  
October 24, 2023  

 
5 
 

Charlene emphasized the goal for the use of these opioid funds is to not duplicate services but rather to 
support gaps in general infrastructure as well as diving in to prevention, support, and treatment.  
 
Charlene requested that for the remainder of this fiscal year about $150,000 of the funds be dedicated 
to supporting personnel time and general operating expenses. She asked for Board member guidance or 
feedback.  
 
Commissioner Riebe asked for a description of the Guiding Good Choices Program. Charlene explained 
that the program provides instruction on risk factors for youth substance use, strategies for enhancing 
family processes, effective parenting tools, and the use of family meetings to improve family 
engagement and child management. This program would not be school-based but would be provided 
through collaborations with partner organizations to implement the program, and train on the 
curriculum. For example, faith-based organizations, YMCAs, and Boys and Girls Clubs are examples of 
agencies that may benefit from this curriculum.  
 
MOTION: Commissioner Brooks made a motion to approve the Opioid Settlement Spending Plan as 
presented. Dr. Summers seconded the motion. All in favor; motion passes.  
 
SOUTHWEST DISTRICT HEALTH POLICY POSITION STATEMENTS  
Nikki Zogg, SWDH District Director, presented policy position statements around priority areas as 
determined by CHNA results with housing, behavioral health, and behavioral health care access being 
primary priorities.  
 
Nikki asked Board members for feedback and guidance. One support statement that is not included but 
will be added if the Board supports it is that the District would oppose legalizing the production and 
distribution of legalized marijuana. She clarified that this is supported by the collective Boards of Health 
across the state but was not included in this packet.  
 
Board members asked Nikki for the opportunity to review these policy statements and discuss them at 
next month’s Board meeting. This item will be carried over to the November Board of Health meeting 
for further discussion.  
 
IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT OFFER FOR EASEMENT PORTION 
Nikki presented the right of way acquisition packet received from Idaho Transportation Department for 
the portion of land at the Caldwell location that will be impacted by the Farmway Road to Middleton 
Road project number A022(715), SH 55.  
 
Nikki did ask our legal counsel to review this offer. Legal counsel has no issues with the packet from ITD 
but did suggest that an outside appraisal would be a costly and lengthy process.  
 
Dr. Summers asked how long the highway expansion project will take and will it impact our clients’ 
access to the Caldwell facility. Nikki expects construction to begin in the spring and there will be an 
impact for clients. Following completion of the project drivers will no longer be able to turn left from 
Florida onto Highway 55.  
 



Board of Health Meeting Minutes  
October 24, 2023  

 
6 
 

MOTION: Commissioner Brooks made a motion to approve the Idaho Transportation Department Right 
of Way Acquisition offer in the amount of $280,991.75 and authorize Chairman Aberasturi to execute 
the required signatures. Dr. Summers seconded the motion. All in favor; motion passes. 
 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
Public Health Symposium 
The Public Health Symposium is scheduled for November 28, 2023. The Board of Health meeting will be 
shortened to allow Board members to attend the symposium.  
 
Strategic Plan Revision – County Commissioner 3-question survey 
Nikki will be reaching out to county commissioners with a 3-question survey to help inform some 
upcoming revisions to the SWDH Strategic Plan. Board members may recall providing input through a 
survey mechanism several years ago.  
 
Youth Behavioral Health Crisis Center Update 
Nikki shared that SWDH has had some delays beyond our control with the proposed physical location for 
location in Nampa. The deadline for opening the crisis center is approaching. Nikki shared that staff has 
been in communication with the Idaho Department of Juvenile Corrections (IDJC) regarding a revised 
timeline for opening. A new architect has been identified to work with this project and a contractor to 
complete the work will be identified. The revised goal is to have the WIYSC operational by the end of 
March. This timeline aligns with the Department of Health and Welfare’s goals for establishing Medicaid 
reimbursement.  
 
In addition, Pathways of Idaho, the WIYSC contracted service provider, has indicated they have space at a 
Nampa outpatient services location that may be available as a temporary location which could open in 
January. The feasibility of opening in this temporary space is being explored. Next steps are to finalize the 
contract with Pathways of Idaho, finish design plans with the new architect firm, and explore a temporary 
location in closer proximity to the long-term location.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
At 11:15 a.m., Commissioner Brooks made a motion to go into Executive Session pursuant to Idaho Code 
74-206(a). Dr. Summers seconded the motion. Roll call was taken. All in favor.  
 
At 11:25 a.m. Board members came out of Executive Session.  
 
ACTION TAKEN AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
MOTION: Commissioner Purdy made a motion to allow interviews to be set up for the three Board of 
Health Physician applicants that live within our District. Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion. All in 
favor; motion passes.  
 
  



Board of Health Meeting Minutes  
October 24, 2023  

 
7 
 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 11:29 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted:   Approved as written: 
 
             
Nikole Zogg    Kelly Aberasturi   Date: November 28, 2023  
Secretary to the Board   Chairman 



 

 

BOARD OF HEALTH SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
Friday, November 17, 2023 

 
BOARD MEMBERS:  
Jennifer Riebe, Commissioner, Payette County – present 
Lyndon Haines, Commissioner, Washington County – absent  
Zach Brooks, Commissioner, Canyon County – present  
Kelly Aberasturi, Commissioner, Owyhee County – present  
Viki Purdy, Commissioner, Adams County – present 
Sam Summers, MD, Physician Representative – present 
Bill Butticci, Commissioner, Gem County – present 
     
STAFF MEMBERS:   
In person: Nikki Zogg 
 
Via Microsoft Teams: Dr. Andrew Baron 
 
GUESTS:  Board of Health Physician Representative candidates.  
 
CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
Chairman Kelly Aberasturi called the meeting to order at 12:05 p.m.  
 
BOARD OF HEALTH PHYSICIAN CANDIDATE 1 INTERVIEW 
Board members interviewed Dr. John Tribble, Board of Health Physician Representative Candidate. 
  
DEBRIEF 
Board members debriefed following the interview.  
 
BOARD OF HEALTH PHYSICIAN CANDIDATE 2 INTERVIEW 
Board members interviewed Dr. Andrew Baron, Board of Health Physician Representative Candidate.  
 
DEBRIEF 
Board members debriefed following the interview.  
 
BOARD OF HEALTH PHYSICIAN CANDIDATE 3 INTERVIEW 
Board members interviewed Dr. Nina Cabrera, Board of Health Physician Representative Candidate.  
 
DEBRIEF 
Board members debriefed following the interviews. The board requested the director ask board 
member, Commissioner Haines, to speak with each of the candidates in advance of the November 28 
regularly scheduled board meeting.  
 
  
  



Special Board of Health Meeting Minutes  
November 17, 2023  

 
2 
 

 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 4:20  p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted:   Approved as written: 
 
             
Nikole Zogg    Kelly Aberasturi   Date: November 28, 2023  
Secretary to the Board   Chairman 
 
 
 



Through Oct-23

Target 33.3%

FY Beginning QTR Ending YTD Month
General Operating Fund 362,480$           531,998$           Net Revenue: 1,571,673$       330,658$           
Millennium Fund -$                        54,600$             Expenditures: (2,980,147)$      (722,571)$         
LGIP Operating 6,621,873$        5,784,739$        Net Income: (1,408,474)$      (391,912)$         
LGIP Vehicle Replacement 102,536$           104,697$           
LGIP Capital 1,299,174$        1,299,174$        

Total 8,386,064$       7,775,208$       

Revenue

Admin Clinic Services
Env & 

Community 
Health

General 
Support

Total YTD Total Budget
Percent Budget 

to Actual

County Contributions 224,358$           -$                   -$                   -$                   224,358$           965,647$           3,031,875$        32%
Fees -$                   44,690$             61,610$             -$                   106,300$           382,959$           1,553,787$        25%
Contract Revenue -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                        221,341$           6,580,992$        3%
Sale of Assets -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                        -$                        12,100$             0%
Interest -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                        -$                        150,000$           0% Luma Migration
Other -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                        1,726$               124,049$           1%  & Implementation
Monthly Revenue 224,358$           44,690$             61,610$             -$                       330,658$           1,571,673$        11,452,803$     14%
Year-to-Date Revenue 1,003,217$       74,120$             494,314$           22$                    1,571,673$       

Expenditures

Admin Clinic Services
Env & 

Community 
Health

General 
Support

Total YTD Total Budget
Percent Budget 

to Actual

Personnel 41,370$             231,408$           253,965$           92,665$             619,408$           2,460,555$        9,415,704$        26%
Operating 5,374$               26,381$             43,017$             28,390$             103,162$           480,626$           1,784,160$        27%
Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                        -$                        130,000$           0%
Trustee & Benefits -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                        38,966$             122,938$           32%
Monthly Expenditures 46,744$             257,789$           296,982$           121,055$           722,571$           2,980,147$        11,452,803$     26%
Year-to-Date Expenditures 211,672$           1,053,275$       1,164,515$       550,686$           2,980,148$       

SOUTHWEST DISTRICT HEALTH
REVENUES & EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR FY2024

Cash Basis

Fund Balances Income Statement Information

Confidence Gap:
Issues with 

* Fee Recognition
* Contract Posting
* Unexplainable 
   correlation
   between NI & 
   Cash

Reason for 
Confidence Gap

 DIRECT BUDGET 

 DIRECT BUDGET 



Oct-23

Target 33.3%

YTD Month
Net Revenue: -$                       -$                       
Expenditures: (209,727)$         (15,713)$            

Net Income: (209,727)$         (15,713)$           

Revenue

Crisis Center YTD Total Budget
Percent Budget 

to Actual

Contract Revenue -$                        -$                        935,000$           0%
Monthly Revenue -$                        -$                        935,000$           0%

 DIRECT BUDGET 

Expenditures

Crisis Center YTD Total Budget
Percent Budget 

to Actual

Personnel 1,404$               12,615$             36,963$             34%
Operating 14,309$             197,111$           898,037$           22%
Capital Outlay -$                        -$                        -$                   0%
Trustee & Benefits -$                        -$                        -$                   0%
Monthly Expenditures 15,713$             209,727$           935,000$           22%

 DIRECT BUDGET 

REVENUES & EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR FY2024
Cash Basis

Income Statement Information

Adult Crisis Center Activity

SOUTHWEST DISTRICT HEALTH - ADULT CRISIS CENTER ACTIVITY



Oct-23

Target 33.3%

YTD Month
Net Revenue: -$                       -$                       
Expenditures: (277,826)$         (68,310)$            

Net Income: (277,826)$         (68,310)$           

Revenue

Crisis Center YTD Total Budget
Percent Budget 

to Actual

City/County Funds -$                        -$                        639,237$           0%
SWDH OPIOID Settlement -$                        -$                        124,656$           0%
BOH Committed Reserve -$                        3,326,325$        0%
Contract Revenue -$                        -$                        300,959$           0%
Monthly Revenue -$                        -$                        4,391,177$        0%

 DIRECT BUDGET 

Expenditures

Crisis Center YTD Total Budget
Percent Budget 

to Actual

Personnel 18,172$             73,997$             257,040$           29%
Operating 8,884$               12,367$             3,097,601$        0%
Capital Outlay -$                        -$                        -$                   0%
Trustee & Benefits 41,254$             191,462$           1,036,536$        18%
Monthly Expenditures 68,310$             277,826$           4,391,177$        6%

 DIRECT BUDGET 

SOUTHWEST DISTRICT HEALTH - YOUTH CRISIS CENTER ACTIVITY
REVENUES & EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR FY2024

Cash Basis

Income Statement Information

Youth Crisis Center Activity



 
 

Page 1 of 11 
 

2024 Policy Position Statements 
 

Southwest District Health’s health policy position statements respond to specific health problems across the six-
county region. The policy position statements are intended to inform legislators and other local elected officials 
on the position SWDH holds relating to current or proposed policies. The statements are brief and concise, and 
intended to be used if or when needed to communicate the district’s position. They may be further 
accompanied by supporting data and information, when requested.  

An executive summary is provided on page 2. Specific and brief position statements pertaining to issues 
impacting the public’s health are provided on pages 3 to 11. 

 

Contents 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ............................................................................................................................................2 

BUILT ENVIRONMENT .............................................................................................................................................3 

FAMILY UNIT ...........................................................................................................................................................4 

GOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH ..........................................................................................................................5 

SCHOOLS/EDUCATION ............................................................................................................................................7 

2023 – 2026 PUBLIC HEALTH PRIORITIES ...............................................................................................................8 

HOUSING ............................................................................................................................................................8 

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH .........................................................................................................................................8 

HEALTHCARE ACCESS ..........................................................................................................................................9 

CIVIC ENGAGEMENT ............................................................................................................................................ 10 

WORKFORCE ........................................................................................................................................................ 11 

 

  



 
 

Page 2 of 11 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Built Environment.  SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to improve the 
safety, accessibility, and interactions we have in our built environment. The design of our 
communities has positive or negative effects on physical and mental health.  

Family Unit.  SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to strengthen the 
family unit and reverse multi-generational trends that negatively impact the family unit such as 
incarceration, physical/emotional abuse, divorce, poverty, and low education attainment.  

Governmental Public Health. SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to 
enhance local public health infrastructure to assure the public has access to high-performing 
health districts with professional and well-trained staff. Public health professionals should be 
counted on to collect, analyze, and report on the health of their community in a timely, 
accurate, and meaningful way, effectively plan for and respond to threats to the public’s health, 
and deliver services as required by law and based on the needs of the local community. 

Schools/Education. SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to provide 
children with the greatest opportunities for success and good health in a safe learning 
environment.  

2023 – 2026 Public Health Priorities: 
 
Housing. SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to develop healthier 
housing and neighborhoods for everyone. Research shows that a network of walking 
paths, recreation areas, and facilities intended to foster community, as well as space to 
grow fresh vegetables contributes to communities living longer, happier, and healthier 
lives. 
Behavioral Health. SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to address 
gaps in the behavioral health care system and improve the conditions that promote well-
being such as strong families, friendships, and communities. 
Access to Care. SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to fill gaps in 
the healthcare system, strengthen the coordination between healthcare organizations 
and providers, address workforce shortages, and improve affordability of care and access 
to primary prevention services (e.g., wellness exams, nutrition education, immunizations 
for vaccine-preventable diseases). 
 

Civic Engagement. SWDH supports private and public sector collaboration and engagement. 
Civic engagement is critical to creating and maintaining communities that thrive. 

Workforce. SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to improve workplace 
safety and reduce work-related injuries, i llnesses, and deaths.  

  



 
 

Page 3 of 11 
 

BUILT ENVIRONMENT 
SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to improve the safety, accessibility, and 
interactions we have in our built environment. The design of our communities has positive or negative effects 
on physical and mental health. 
 

Supports accessible building standards. 
Why: Seniors and people with disabilities, including many veterans have limited access to affordable and safe 
housing, and are at increased risk for injury when accessing services or homes that are not easily accessible. 

Supports initiatives, policies, and funding decisions to help municipalities make healthier planning 
decisions. 
Why: The built environment of a community is a direct predictor of longevity and quality of life. Physical spaces 
can expose people to toxins or pollutants and influence lifestyles that contribute to diabetes, coronary vascular 
disease, and asthma among other diseases and conditions. 

Supports funding for critical infrastructure that accommodates population growth (e.g., roads, bridges, 
schools, and community spaces such as parks, libraries, and senior centers). 
Why: A person’s environment affects their overall physical and mental health.  

Supports public transit at the state level. 
Why: Public transit, when implemented effectively, can efficiently move large numbers of people from one 
place to another. Through public transit, Idaho can decrease traffic congestion and injury crashes, promote a 
cleaner environment, and increase community connectedness.  

Supports multi-modal/active transportation in municipalities. 
Why: Physical activity improves health outcomes while also decreasing traffic congestion, improving air 
quality, and decreasing long-term road maintenance and expansion costs. 

Supports the use of health impact assessments to investigate how a proposed program, project, policy, or 
plan may impact health and well-being and inform decision-makers of these potential outcomes before the 
decision is made. 
Why: Land use planning (e.g., housing, transportation, infrastructure, waste management, or site 
revitalization, etc.) has impacts on health in a beneficial or determinantal way in the short and in the long-
term. Understanding those impacts during the planning process helps ensure decision-makers fully understand 
how the health of a community will be affected by land use decisions.  

 

Continued on next page 



 
 

Page 4 of 11 
 

Supports policies that protect the groundwaters of Idaho and ensure potable water for generations to 
come. 
Why: Idahoans across the state are experiencing unsafe levels of nitrates, arsenic, uranium, and other toxins in 
their private well water systems. Without monitoring and intentional practices to protect ground water and 
aquifers across the state, the risk for further contamination is high.  

Supports rural subdivisions on public water systems. 
Why: Public water systems in rural subdivisions have deliberate controls which reduce the likelihood of 
exposure to drinking water contaminates. Public Water Systems can create more flexibility of design for land 
use.  

Supports policy changes that improve and clarify the role and responsibilities of local and state 
governmental entities when addressing environmental issues that impact the public’s health. 
Why: Idaho’s current statutes and rules place the burden of enforcing compliance on county prosecuting 
attorneys and the State’s Attorney General. The case load and the return on investment make environmental 
compliance almost impossible to enforce. The current situation undermines local health district legitimacy and 
degrades morale, after trying to affect compliance, and nothing happens to offenders.  

 

FAMILY UNIT 
SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to strengthen the family unit and reverse multi-
generational trends that negatively impact the family unit such as incarceration, physical/emotional abuse, 
divorce, poverty, and low education attainment.  
 

Supports expansion of home visiting programs that develop self-sufficiency and improved health outcomes 
for young families.  
Why: Idaho’s local public health districts’ home visiting programs work with new and young families who are 
motivated and driven to be self-sufficient and are seeking knowledge, expertise, and skills to help them attain 
their goals. These evidence-based programs have demonstrated positive results in the short-term, but also 
long-term as they aim to break the cycles of poverty and justice system involvement. 

Supports policies that empower parents to be the best teachers. 
Why: Supportive, loving, and effective parenting can set children up for success. Government’s role should be 
as limited as possible by being present and available when needed to support and equip parents with the 
necessary knowledge, tools, and resources to be successful.  

 

  



 
 

Page 5 of 11 
 

GOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH 
SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to enhance local public health infrastructure to 
assure the public has access to high-performing health districts with professional and well-trained staff. Public 
health professionals should be counted on to collect, analyze, and report on the health of their community in 
a timely, accurate, and meaningful way, effectively plan for and respond to threats to the public’s health, and 
deliver services as required by law and based on the needs of the local community. 
 

Supports funding for governmental public health infrastructure and essential services. 
Why: Governmental public health works to assure critical infrastructure (e.g., safe drinking water, safe food, 
healthy housing, education/information for informed decision-making, etc.) is in place to prevent disease, 
disability, and premature death of the population.  

Supports policies and funding that are targeted toward primary prevention. 
Why: Primary prevention aims to prevent disease or injury before it ever occurs. This means people, young and 
old, have the greatest chance to live long, healthy lives, be thriving members of their community, and spend 
less on healthcare. 

Supports policies and funding that are invested in evidence-based interventions. 
Why: Innovative programs have their place, but when investing tax-payer dollars in public health efforts, 
evidence-based interventions have demonstrated the best opportunity for funding to deliver results. 

Supports Idaho’s de-centralized public health model and infrastructure to support and sustain it. 
Why: In a state with many rural counties, communities are best supported with public health services through 
a model that leverages multi-county, state, and federal funding. This ensures even the least populated 
counties have access to professional services to help their communities be healthy and safe. 

Supports a fully resourced Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ). 
Why: While DEQ’s primary focus is on protecting the environment, they do have functions that impact the 
public health’s such as ground water protection, solid waste management, and sewage disposal. Without a 
fully resourced DEQ, there are greater risks to the public’s health. 

Supports funding that covers the cost to administer the state’s food protection program. 
Why: County taxpayers subsidize the cost to administer the state’s food protection program. While most 
businesses are expected to cover the full cost of doing business, on average about 55% of the program is paid 
by the property taxpayers of the district. This means that property taxpayer dollars cannot be used for other 
services that may benefit the population (e.g., responding to animal bites, illegal sewage disposal, and other 
nuisance complaints).  

Continued on next page 



 
 

Page 6 of 11 
 

Supports a central data system for core public health services provided across the state.  
Why: Utilizing a shared central data system across the state would create efficiency and transparency in 
government, improve coordination across local and state agencies, and enhance the customer experience 
particularly in the food protection, subsurface sewage, and daycare inspection programs. 

Supports investment in public health data modernization and population health data collection. 
Why: The public’s expectation of understanding the behaviors, environmental, and social factors that 
contribute to disease, disability, and premature death are ever-increasing and public health professionals can 
only provide timely, accurate data and information if the systems exist to effectively capture it. Well-
functioning data systems also allow public health to be transparent and demonstrate fiscal accountability to 
taxpayers and policymakers. 

Supports reinstating the Youth Risk Behavior Survey or similar survey. 
Why: Without the ability to collect, analyze, and report on youth behavior trends, public health is unable to 
determine emerging threats impacting youth, the effectiveness of education and intervention programs, and 
the best place to invest taxpayer dollars to improve the health of young Idahoans. 

Supports public health accreditation for local public health districts. 
Why: A third-party evaluation of local public health departments provides the opportunity for public health 
districts to improve their performance and transparency, and develop trust through objective accountability. 
Third-party accreditation demonstrates that the public health district meets public-sector standards of like 
organizations and serves to enhance public trust. 

Supports risk-based food protection inspections. 
Why: Idaho requires one inspection per year of licensed food establishments. Establishments have varying 
levels of risk to the public’s health depending on the complexity of their food handling processes. With limited 
resources and varying risk to the public’s health, risk-based inspections would allow public health professionals 
to inspect facilities at a frequency that is not arbitrary, decreases risk for foodborne illnesses in the community, 
rewards well-performing establishments, and wisely uses taxpayer dollars to protect the public’s health. 

Supports healthy relationship education for young people starting at 6th grade with parental consent or 
participation. 
Why: Equipping youth with the communication skills to navigate interpersonal, intimate, and family 
relationships is important to strengthen healthy relationships and foster youth-parent trust and reduce the risk 
for unplanned pregnancy, sexual disease transmission, and partner violence. 

Supports healthy nutrition education for moms and their families. 
Why: A healthy diet that consists mostly of whole, plant-based foods, and limited meat and animal products is 
a cornerstone to good physical health and mental wellbeing. 

Continued on next page 



 
 

Page 7 of 11 
 

Supports policy changes that protect and clarify governmental public health authority. 
Why: Many Idaho statutes and rules exist to guide the Department of Health and Welfare, Department of 
Environmental Quality, and the public health districts. Responsibility and authority are often vague or unclear, 
which means that the public’s concerns are not consistently addressed and threats to public health may not be 
quickly addressed particularly when considering food safety, water quality/protection, and communicable 
diseases or diseases of public health significance, and emergencies or disasters that impact the public’s health.  

 

SCHOOLS/EDUCATION 
SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to provide children with the greatest 
opportunities for success and good health in a safe learning environment.  
 

Supports funding for school resource officers. 
Why: School resource officers play an essential role in the lives of young people by providing education and 
early intervention relating to internet safety, alcohol and drugs, crime, bullying, drivers’ education, and the 
criminal justice system.  

Supports kindergarten for all. 
Why: Kindergarten provides a safe learning environment where children can learn and practice essential and 
foundational social, emotional, problem-solving, and study skills needed throughout their schooling and into 
adulthood and the workforce.  

Supports universal school meals. 
Why: Malnourished children are more likely to struggle with focusing, behavioral issues, and learning in an 
educational environment. As they near adulthood, they are also less likely to be physically fit due to nutritional 
deficiencies for some occupations, including many careers in the trades and military service.  

Supports school-based health programs with parental consent policies. 
Why: Schools are often the gathering place in small communities across Idaho. They are also where youth 
gather and collectively can receive education and information that allows them to make informed decisions 
about their health as a young person and into adulthood. This may include home economics, personal finance 
management and budget, interpersonal communication, and healthy relationships. The decisions they make 
as young people will have long-term impacts on their health, both positively and negatively. 

 
 
 

  



 
 

Page 8 of 11 
 

 

2023 – 2026 PUBLIC HEALTH PRIORITIES 

HOUSING 
SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to develop healthier housing and neighborhoods. 
Research shows that housing coupled with safe and accessible infrastructure such as a network of walking 
paths, recreation areas, and facilities intended to foster community, as well as space to grow fresh vegetables 
contributes to communities living longer, happier, and healthier lives.  
 

Supports tools that create and preserve safe housing for everyone. 
Why: Housing is foundational to health and with the growth our communities are experiencing, housing is 
often unattainable for many. Tools and funding mechanisms like funding the Idaho Housing Trust Fund can be 
a helpful resource for communities trying to address their housing needs at the local level.  

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to address gaps in the behavioral health care 
system and improve the conditions that promote well-being such as strong families, friendships, and 
communities.  
 

Supports evidence-based mental health care access for all ages. 
Why: Idahoans of all ages attempt to access mental health services; however, many communities across the 
state have limited access to evidence-based providers or resources to access virtually available providers.  

Supports drug overdose training and resources in our local communities.  
Why: Equipping Idahoans with the knowledge and skills to respond to an overdose similar to other medical 
emergencies will help reduce overdose deaths and give those who experience an overdose an opportunity to 
achieve recovery. 

Supports harm reduction practices that prevent injury, illness, and premature death, and successful 
recovery. 
Why: Every life matters. All people struggle with addictions of various kinds and most move through those 
addictions and into recovery. Harm reduction practices help reduce the long-term ramifications as people work 
toward recovery. 

Supports vaping prevention education for young people.  
Why: The tobacco and nicotine industry continues to target products toward youth. Vaping has no known 
medical or health benefit, and the long-term health consequences are still not entirely known.  



 
 

Page 9 of 11 
 

Supports legalizing fentanyl test strips. 
Why: Fentanyl test strips are known as one of the best tools we have today to reduce the risk for fentanyl 
exposure and overdose.  

Opposes legalizing the production, sale, distribution, and possession of recreational marijuana, hashish, 
marijuana concentrates, and products made from marijuana concentrates.  
Why: Marijuana is addictive, and today’s higher potency products are contributing to an increase of teenagers 
and adults in treatment for marijuana dependency. Marijuana use is strongly associated with alcohol 
problems and illicit drug use. In states where recreational marijuana is legal, products are often designed to 
entice youth.  

Supports removing kratom from stores in Idaho or raising the age to purchase to 21 years. 
Why: Kratom, which is legal to purchase in Idaho, affects the same brain receptors as morphine, and appears 
to have properties that expose users to the risks of addiction, abuse, and dependence. In 2020, the Poison 
Control Centers (PCCs) found that Idaho had the highest kratom exposure rate in the U.S. 

HEALTHCARE ACCESS 
SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to fill gaps in the healthcare system, strengthen 
the coordination between healthcare organizations and providers, address workforce shortages, and improve 
affordability of care and access to primary prevention services (e.g., wellness exams, nutrition education, 
immunizations vaccine-preventable diseases).  
 

Supports innovative service models for emergency medical services in rural communities.  
Why: Many rural communities across Idaho are faced with unsustainable costs and limited capacity to address 
the growing demand for EMS services. 

Supports community health worker training and certification. 
Why: Community health workers can play a vital role in filling healthcare gaps within the system and ensure 
community members are connected to care. A trained and certified workforce brings consistency in care and 
services, credibility to the profession, and pathway for ongoing professional development.  

Supports Medicaid coverage for 12 months post-partum. 
Why: New moms often face ongoing medical needs post-partum that extend beyond the current length of 
Medicaid coverage. Not having access to care puts their recovery and ability to successfully carry future 
pregnancies to full term at-risk. Not providing new moms access to health care places their newborns at risk. 

Supports access to affordable contraception. 
Why: 90% of females 18 to 64 years have used contraception at some point in their reproductive years. 
Women and families should have access to affordable contraception to prevent unintended pregnancies.  



 
 

Page 10 of 11 
 

Supports routine newborn screening for genetic, endocrine, cardiovascular, and hearing defects or 
disorders. 
Why: Early detection of disorders among newborns is essential to giving them the best opportunity for a 
healthy and thriving life.  

Supports access to routine newborn medications and pre-exposure prophylaxis (e.g., hepatitis B vaccine, 
vitamin K injection, and erythromycin eye ointment). 
Why: Pre-exposure prophylaxis and early detection and treatment for certain diseases and disorders of public 
health concern among newborns is essential to giving them the best opportunity for a healthy and thriving life. 

Supports free-choice and access to immunizations that prevent disease, disability, and pre-mature death. 
Why: Every person should have the ability to choose to be vaccinated against infectious diseases and cancers 
that may reduce their risk for severe illness, disability, lost work productivity/time in the classroom, pre-
mature death, and unnecessary healthcare related costs.  

Supports reinstatement of Idaho’s Maternal Mortality Review Board. 
Why: Without the ability for a central body to review maternal deaths in Idaho, public health is unable to 
understand the drivers of maternal mortality and the complications of pregnancy in way that allows the public 
health and healthcare system to determine what interventions at the patient, provider, facility, system, and 
community levels will have the most effect on decreasing maternal mortality. 

 

CIVIC ENGAGEMENT 
SWDH supports private and public sector collaboration and engagement. Civic engagement is critical to 
creating and maintaining communities that thrive.  
 

Supports civic engagement of a community. 
Why: Community engagement can inspire innovation and create opportunities for individual and community 
growth and empower them to address issues impacting their health and well-being.  

Supports access to voting in accordance with the 15th Amendment of the U.S. Constitution. 
Why: Voting is an important action through which citizens engage in the political process. Voting sends a 
signal of support or dissent for policies that shape a community’s ability to thrive. 

Supports health in all policies, which integrates and articulates health considerations into policymaking 
across sectors to improve the health of communities. 
Why: A person’s and a community’s health is more influenced by their environment and behaviors than by the 
healthcare they receive. Through a health in all policies approach, local policymakers have the power and 
ability to consider the impacts on the health of their community in any policy decision they consider. 



 
 

Page 11 of 11 
 

 
 

WORKFORCE 
SWDH supports policies and funding commitments that aim to improve workplace safety and reduce work-
related injuries, illnesses, and deaths.  
 

Supports healthy and safe work environments. 
Why: Healthy and safe work environments reduce unexpected absentees, reduce employer and healthcare 
costs, and improve retention and morale.  

 



 
 

 
 Healthier Together 

13307 Miami Lane  Caldwell, ID 83607  (208) 455-5300  FAX (208) 454-7722 

 

 
2024 PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 

 
 
 
November 28, 2023  

 
 

Southwest District Health 
Nikole Zogg, Director   
13307 Miami Lane 
Caldwell, ID  83607 
 
The Southwest District Health Board of Health will hold their monthly Board Meetings on the following 
dates at 9:00 a.m., unless otherwise noted, at Southwest District Health, 13307 Miami Lane, Caldwell, 
Idaho. 
 
 Tuesday, January 23, 2024*   Tuesday, July 23, 2024  
 Tuesday, February 27, 2024*   Tuesday, August 27, 2024 
 Tuesday, March 19, 2024*   Tuesday, September 17, 2024  
 Tuesday, April 23, 2024   Tuesday, October 22, 2024 
 Tuesday, May 21, 2024    Tuesday, November 19, 2024 
 Tuesday, June 25, 2024   Tuesday, December 17, 2024*  
 
This public notice satisfies the notice of meeting requirements in Idaho Code 74-204(1), Open Meeting 
Law. This document is posted in the principal office of Southwest District Health where the Board of 
Health meetings are held and is made available at https://phd3.idaho.gov/boh/calendar/. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact Nikole Zogg at 208-455-5317. 
 
* These meetings will be held from 10:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. to allow for winter driving conditions. 
 

 



H E A L T H I E R  T O G E T H E R  |  S W D H . O R G

Community Risk Reduction:
Tobacco and Nicotine Prevention & 

Cessation Programs
Hailee Tilton, MHS

Risk Reduction Team Program Manager



H e a l t h i e r  T o g e t h e r

2

Meet the Risk Reduction Team!

Hailee Tilton Raquel Nuñez Lee’Erin Brooks



H e a l t h i e r  T o g e t h e r

3

The tobacco/vape programs at 
SWDH focus on...
• All initiatives and programs related to preventing initiation 

and supporting cessation of -
• Commercial tobacco

• Cigarettes
• Cigars
• Smokeless tobacco
• Pipe tobacco
• Hookah

• Electronic-cigarettes (e-cigs, vapes)



H e a l t h i e r  T o g e t h e r

4

What Do We Do?

Evidence-Based Programming
• Prevention (prevent use) - CATCH My 

Breath
• Intervention (student violates school 

policy) - INDEPTH
• Cessation (ready to quit) - Freedom 

from Smoking (adults) or Not on 
Tobacco (youth) and state QuitLine

• Diaper Program



H e a l t h i e r  T o g e t h e r

5

What Do We Do?

• Resource sharing and screening checks with 
health entities

• Dental, behavioral health providers, healthcare 
providers, social workers, SRO's, etc.

• Policy/environmental change
• Preventing exposure to secondhand smoke/vapor

• Community based initiatives
• Assist in starting substance-free clubs/chapters
• Create youth-led anti-vaping PSA's
• Community presentations for parents/caregivers or students



H e a l t h i e r  T o g e t h e r

6



H e a l t h i e r  T o g e t h e r

Community Impact - Youth

8
schools taught CATCH My 

Breath in 4 of the 6 counties 
SWDH serves

114
teens completed 

INDEPTH intervention 
program

1,075
students completed the 

CATCH My Breath 
Vape Prevention Program



H e a l t h i e r  T o g e t h e r

Community Impact - Adults

8

6
adults completed 

community cessation 
classes

70
Moms or family members 
quit nicotine through our 

diaper/wipe program

$2,000
Per family savings after 

quitting tobacco and 
receiving diapers/wipes



H e a l t h i e r  T o g e t h e r

Where?

• CATCH My Breath – prevention
• INDEPTH – intervention
• Community cessation classes
• Smoke/vape-free policy
• Community based initiatives
• Resource sharing
• Youth & adult nicotine screening

9



H e a l t h i e r  T o g e t h e r

10

Why?

• Increase positive health 
outcomes

• Decrease addiction
• #1 preventable death 

(smoking)

• Family impact
• Constant emerging trends

• New vape products



H e a l t h i e r  T o g e t h e r

Program Funding
Funding Source

Subgrant HC340200 - 93.387 National State 
and Tobacco Control Program; 93.994 
Maternal and Child Health Services Block 
Grant to the State

Millennium Fund

Funding Recipient CDC to IDHW to SWDH SWDH via direct allocation and Idaho 
Department of Health and Welfare

Funding Requestor IDHW SWDH

Funding Duration Through 4/30/2024
(anticipate ongoing annually)

Through 6/30/2024
(anticipate ongoing annually)

Foundational Public 
Health Services/Capabilities

Assessment & Surveillance; Community Partnership Development; Equity; Policy 
Development & Support; Communications

Essential Public Health 
Services

Assess and monitor health; Communicate effectively to inform and educate; Strengthen, support, and 
mobilize communities and partnerships to improve health; Create, champion, and implement policies, plans, 
and laws; Enable equitable access; Improve and innovate through evaluation, research, and quality 
improvement

https://phnci.org/uploads/resource-files/FPHS-Factsheet-2022.pdf
https://phnci.org/uploads/resource-files/FPHS-Factsheet-2022.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/publichealthgateway/publichealthservices/essentialhealthservices.html
https://www.cdc.gov/publichealthgateway/publichealthservices/essentialhealthservices.html


SWDH Role in 
2023-2026

Collaborative Action Plan 
Southwest District Board of Health 

November 28, 2023



Presentation Outline 

• WICHC Recap 

• What is an Implementation Plan? 

• Regional Health Implementation Plan FAQs

• Proposed SWDH Involvement 

2



WICHC Background 

• Multi-sector, public-private 
partnership established in 2019

• 23 diverse members 
representing public health, 
healthcare, social services 

• Addressing the social 
influencers (determinants) of 
health (SDOH) 

3



WICHC Funders 



WICHC Funding and SWDH Contribution

Funding Sources: 
• Non-profit and private health systems
• Foundations & Non-profits 
• Insurance Providers 
• Central and Southwest District Health
• Local, state and federal grants 

Funding Requestor: WICHC 

Funding Recipient: CDH

Funding Duration: Renewed annually  

• Foundational Area/Capability:
• Chronic disease prevention 
• Access and link to clinical care and 

community partners 
• Maternal, child, and family health 
• Environmental public health 

• Essential Public Health Service: 
• ESPHS 1 – Assess and monitor population 

health 
• ESPHS 3 – Communicate effectively to 

inform and educate 
• ESPHS 4 – Strengthen, support, and mobilize 

communities to improve health 

5



CHNA 
Results 

6



What is a Regional Health 
Implementation Plan? 
• Action plan that explains what an organization will do to address 

community health priorities. 

• Three-year plan that is linked to addressing priorities listed in CHNA. 

• Plans are usually agency-driven. There has never been a regional, 
community-anchored and collaborative plan like this in Idaho’s 
history. 

• By collaborating on shared plan, we’ll be able to coordinate 
activities with other partners to reduce gaps and increase impact. 

7



Implementation Plan FAQs 

• This plan will guide and direct the work of the ten-county 
collaborative for the next three years.  

• Each WICHC member organization has a role to play and 
will be completing activities in the plan.

8



Implementation Plan Process

9

Convened 
WICHC 
members.

Completed 
initial asset 
mapping of 
gaps, 
successes 
across 
WICHC 
region. 

Hosted two 
WICHC 
workshops 
to develop 
strategies in 
plan.

Completed 
1:1 interviews 
with 
members to 
refine their 
contributions 
to the 
strategies. 

Develop 
draft plan 
(early Nov.). 

Publish plan 
on Nov. 17th 



SWDH Role in Implementation Plan

10

Housing and Homelessness

Coordinate internal public health data 
and provide annual reports to land use 
partners on the impact of a tight 
housing market is having on public 
health-related costs/outcomes. 

Participate in opportunities to learn 
more about state and federal funding 
strategies for wrap-around services.

Behavioral Health

Partner with WICHC members, state 
departments and others to improve the 
success of pre-entry pipeline in 
healthcare (BH, CHEMS, and CHW) 
workforce. 

Partner with others on developing a 
rural behavioral health stigma reduction 
campaign. 

Access to Care

Improve effectiveness of 
FindHelpIdaho.org by having staff 
members be certified and begin 
referring to other services on 
FindHelpIdaho.org. 

Participate in developing a regional 
strategy for mobile health to address 
gaps and ease access barriers. 

Support and engagement from Community Health, Community Behavioral Health, Clinical Services, and CHAT Teams



Proposal for SWDH Role 

• Some strategies will be grant funded and others will need 
to be funded by WICHC partners.

• Alexis/SWDH will be applying for funds on some of the strategies.

• SWDH team members will be participate on workgroups 
and activities that align with their program and 
community goals. 

• Identify funding needed and allocate district dollars to 
support implementing these strategies in FY25 Budget.

11



Thank you! 
WICHC Contact Info:

Alexis Pickering 
apickering@cdh.Idaho.gov 

12

SWDH Contact info:
Charlene Cariou

Charlene.Cariou@phd3.idaho.gov

mailto:apickering@cdh.Idaho.gov
mailto:Charlene.Cariou@phd3.idaho.gov


CORNERSTONE BUILDING 
524 Cleveland Blvd 
Caldwell, Idaho 83605 
Lease Amendment #1 
 
November 7th, 2023 
                                                                    
To whom it may concern with Southwest District Health: 
 
The following terms and conditions shall be incorporated into the original lease 
agreement dated January 19, 2019, by and between Southwest District Health as Tenant 
and PLB Acquisitions LLC as Landlord. 
 
 

1) Tenant desires to extend their existing lease of Tenant Space #160 for five 
additional years beginning January 19th, 2024, and ending January 20th, 2029. 
 

2) Item 1.3 to include the definition, “Suite 160”.   
 
3) The new monthly lease amount will be as follows: 
              
                      Year     1       $4,909.67 Month / $58.916.04 Year 

                                Year     2       $5,056.96 Month / $60,683.52 Year 
                                Year     3       $5,208.66 Month / $62,503.92 Year 
                                Year     4       $5,364.93 Month / $64,379.16 Year 
                                Year     5       $5,524.92 Month / $66,299.04 Year 
    

4)  Item #27, to replace Cushman & Wakefield | Commerce, with Lee and 
Associates Idaho LLC.   

 
          4)   All other lease terms and conditions shall remain unchanged.   
 
 
 
 
LANDLORD                                                    TENANT 
PLB Acquisitions LLC       Southwest District Health 
 
                                                                                                                       
By:_________________________                   By: ___________________________ 
Griffith Bibeau 
 
 
Date: _______________________                   Date: _________________________ 
 
 
 






































	BoHAgendaFinal_20231128
	MeetingPacketBoH_20231128
	BoHFinalAgenda_NOV2023
	2-BoHDraftMinutes10242023
	BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING MINUTES
	BOARD MEMBERS:
	Jennifer Riebe, Commissioner, Payette County – present via Zoom
	Lyndon Haines, Commissioner, Washington County – not present
	Zach Brooks, Commissioner, Canyon County – present
	Kelly Aberasturi, Commissioner, Owyhee County – present
	Viki Purdy, Commissioner, Adams County – present
	Sam Summers, MD, Physician Representative – present
	Bill Butticci, Commissioner, Gem County – not present
	STAFF MEMBERS:
	CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER
	Chairman Kelly Aberasturi called the meeting to order at 9:08 a.m.
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	Meeting attendees participated in the pledge of allegiance.
	ROLL CALL
	Chairman Aberasturi – present; Dr. Summers – present; Commissioner Purdy – present; Vice Chairman Haines – not present; Commissioner Brooks – present; Commissioner Riebe – present via Zoom; Commissioner Butticci – not present.
	REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS; APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	Chairman Kelly Aberasturi asked for additional agenda items. Board members had no additional agenda items or changes to the agenda.
	IN-PERSON PUBLIC COMMENT

	3-SpecialBoHDraftMinutes11172023
	BOARD OF HEALTH SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
	BOARD MEMBERS:
	Jennifer Riebe, Commissioner, Payette County – present
	Lyndon Haines, Commissioner, Washington County – absent
	Zach Brooks, Commissioner, Canyon County – present
	Kelly Aberasturi, Commissioner, Owyhee County – present
	Viki Purdy, Commissioner, Adams County – present
	Sam Summers, MD, Physician Representative – present
	Bill Butticci, Commissioner, Gem County – present
	STAFF MEMBERS:
	CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER
	Chairman Kelly Aberasturi called the meeting to order at 12:05 p.m.

	4. FY24MonthlyFinancial-Oct (1)
	Oct

	5-BOH_SWDH_PolicyStatements_20231011 (1)
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	BUILT ENVIRONMENT
	FAMILY UNIT
	GOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH
	SCHOOLS/EDUCATION
	2023 – 2026 PUBLIC HEALTH PRIORITIES
	HOUSING
	BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
	HEALTHCARE ACCESS

	CIVIC ENGAGEMENT
	WORKFORCE

	6 - 2024 annual BOH meeting notice 20231121
	7-BoH Tobacco Vape Programs Presentation_202311
	Community Risk Reduction:�Tobacco and Nicotine Prevention & Cessation Programs
	Meet the Risk Reduction Team! 
	The tobacco/vape programs at SWDH focus on...
	What Do We Do?
	What Do We Do?
	Slide Number 6
	Community Impact - Youth
	Community Impact - Adults
	Where?
	Why?
	Program Funding

	8-SWDH BOH Presentation on Implementation Plan 1
	SWDH Role in �2023-2026�Collaborative Action Plan 
	Presentation Outline 
	WICHC Background 	
	WICHC Funders 
	WICHC Funding and SWDH Contribution 
	CHNA Results 
	What is a Regional Health Implementation Plan? 
	Implementation Plan FAQs	
	Implementation Plan Process
	 SWDH Role in Implementation Plan
	Proposal for SWDH Role	
	Thank you! 

	9A S W Health Amend #1 11_7_23 (1)
	9B-Crisis Center lease fully executed 011919 (3) (1)




